
ADDENDUM #1- Responses to Requests for Information 
 

Posting Date 10/19/2023 
 

Request for Proposals # 1845-24 
Student Transportation Services 

 
Note: If similar questions were received by multiple parties, questions were combined to form 
one question representing intent and answered below.  In most instances, questions retain 
wording verbatim, so grammatical and other errors are not on behalf of EHPS. 

 

 

1. Is the District open to receiving partial responses for a portion of the requested services in the 
RFP?  

i. EHPS is looking for one bus provider to meet all requirements listed in the RFP. 
 

2. Regarding Request for Proposals Instructions, on page 2: 
a. Please provide the anticipated award date. 

i. EHPS looks forward to award in Q3 (January – March) of 2024. 
 

b. Please provide the anticipated contract start date.   
i. July 1, 2024 

 
c. Please provide the anticipated date that the District expects buses to be delivered and 

for the yard to open. 
i. Contractor is expected to provide all services by the start contract. EHPS does 

not own or control the existing bus yard. 
 

d. May EHPS please provide additional details on the timeline between award -> contract 
negotiation -> contract start? 

i. EHPS looks forward to start negotiation in Q2 (October – December) and award 
in Q3 (January – March) of 2024.  
 

3. Regarding Indemnification and Insurance, on page 4: 
a. Will the Board and Town of East Hartford consider a reasonable cap on damages? 

i. EHPS will work with the awarded vendor to construct the resultant contract. All 
terms of the RFP will be applied to the contract.  
 

b. Will the Board and Town of East Hartford consider a reasonable exclusion of 
consequential, incidental, indirect, or special damages? 

EHPS will work with the awarded vendor to construct the resultant contract. All 
terms of the RFP will be applied to the contract. 



c. May the Board and Town of East Hartford agree that the indemnification obligations 
shall only apply to third-party claims, as opposed to direct claims from the Board or 
Town of East Hartford? 

i. EHPS will work with the awarded vendor to construct the resultant contract. All 
terms of the RFP will be applied to the contract 

d. May the Board and Town of East Hartford confirm that the attorneys and other 
professionals it engages on its own shall be at the Board and Town of East Hartford’s 
cost, as the Awarded Bidder/Proposer will be covering the cost of their own attorneys 
and other professionals engaged to defend the Board and Town of East Hartford? 

i. EHPS will work with the awarded vendor to construct the resultant contract. All 
terms of the RFP will be applied to the contract 

e. Have liquidated damages been applied in the last three years? If so, please provide 
annual liquidated damages over the last three years for the areas described in the RFP. 

i. No. 
 

4. Regarding Operations and Finance - Background, on page 9:  
a. Does EHPS have standard contract terms that they are able to provide for bidders to 

review? 
i. EHPS will work with the awarded vendor to construct the resultant contract. All 

terms of the RFP will be applied to the contract.  
 

5. Regarding Other Considerations, on page 10:  
a. May the District provide the transportation budget for the scope of this RFP?  

i. The EHPS FY24 Adopted Budget is publicly available on the EHPS website 
www.easthartford.org  under Departments/Finance. 
 

b. May the District share a copy of the current contract and rates set in place for the scope 
of this RFP? 

i. This information is not relevant to the RFP process, however it is accessible 
through the proper legal protocols. 
 

c. Are drivers and monitors part of a union? If so, can the District provide a copy of the 
CBA? 

i. EHPS does not control the labor arrangement/union status of the current 
transportation contract.  
 

d. Is there a daily driver guarantee?  
i. EHPS does not control the labor arrangement/union status of the current 

transportation contract.  
 

e. May the District provide current hourly pay of drivers, bus aides/monitors? 
i. EHPS does not control the labor arrangement/union status of the current 

transportation contract.  
 

f. Do certain routes require monitors? If so, can the District specify which routes (i.e. pre-
k, daycare, Special Ed, Field Trip) and the number of monitors required for each route?  

i. Please reference the RFP for this information as it is explained in detail. 
 

http://www.easthartford.org/


6. Regarding Other Considerations, on page 11: 
a. Will the District cover the cost associated with electricity? If so, what costs are eligible 

for the coverage or reimbursement?  (Charging station, installation cost, construction, 
etc.,) 

i. EHPS cannot answer any questions related to potential Electric Bus transition.  
Please reference the RFP for submittal requirements related to this potential 
transition. 
 

b. Please provide the information on any available grants and trial programs in the District 
for electric buses, along with their availability date. 

i. EHPS cannot answer any questions related to potential Electric Bus transition at 
this time.  Please reference the RFP for submittal requirements related to this 
potential transition. 
 

c. Does the contractor need to store the fuel on site? Or does EHPS allow for & reimburse 
the contractor for "wet hose" fueling that would be delivered onsite daily.  

i. Contractor needs to store fuel on site or have alternate arrangements to store 
fuel provided by EHPS. 

 
d. For the estimated 72 field trips and 312 athletics trips, is the contractor able to fulfill 

with route buses? Or is the contractor obligated to purchase additional buses to ensure 
100% request coverage? 

i. This is incumbent upon the contractor to resolve. 
 

e. If so, how many additional buses? 
i. N/A 

 
f. Furthermore, can the Midday, late runs and work shuttles also still be done by daily 

route buses? 
i. This is incumbent upon the contractor to resolve. 

 
7. Regarding Other Considerations, on page 12 

a. Will EHPS consider removing the Performance Bond requirement, or alternatively 
consider limiting the value of the Performance Bond to 1-year of the contract 
value?  100% of the contract value may be expensive for a 10-year contract.   

i. EHPS has the OPTION to require Performance Bond per the RFP. 
 

8. Regarding Appendix A - Pricing, on page 15: 
a. What is the annual total mileage for the scope of this RFP? 

i. EHPS has no knowledge of this information. 
 

b. May the District provide average daily mileage for the daily recurring services outlined in 
Appendix A - Pricing? 

i. EHPS has no knowledge of this information. 
 

c. May the District provide detailed route sheets by bus type, including stops and times for 
the routes that are included in this RFP? 



i. The general route information was published in a local newspaper in August 
2023, this information is located at the end of this addendum.  Note that route 
information is subject to change. 

 
d. May the District provide the number of hours and miles associated with the field trip 

and athletic events? And how many field trips are for special education? 
i. EHPS does not have this information.  

 
9. Regarding Appendix C - Current Vehicle Schedule, on page 18: 

a. In regard to The Program 21 buses (5) - are those buses in addition to the 38 Regular Ed 
buses?  

i. Yes 
 

b. As we understand District requires 18 SpEd buses and 38 Gen ED buses not including 
spares. And all else can be done with these buses and no further buses are required?  

i. This is incumbent upon the contractor to resolve. 
 

c. Please outline Type I bus capacity - these are Type A's correct?  
i. 77 passenger Type A. 

 
d. Please outline Type II bus capacity - these are Type C's correct?  

i. 26 Passenger Type C. 
 

e. Is there a specific Wheelchair (WC) capacity the District prefers within each Type (I & II)?  
i. No wheelchair type 1 or STV.  Type 2 capacity must be (3) WC per bus, with one 

having a capacity of (4) WC 
 

f. Is there a spare ratio the District prefers or is it up to the contractor?  
i. This is incumbent upon the contractor to resolve. 

 
g. Please provide a current fleet list. 

i. Please see Appendix C of the RFP. 
 

h. Please clarify if all types of vans are wheelchair accessible? 
i. No wheelchair type 1 or STV.  Type 2 capacity must be (3) WC per bus, with one 

having a capacity of (4) WC 
 
 

10. Please provide a complete list of all routes with start and end times and/or driver hours for the 
day with mileage. The list should include the route type (Regular or Special Needs), vehicle type, 
passenger count, aide or monitor required, and any special equipment needed (Wheelchair lift; 
Air Conditioning). Most routing systems will produce a report with this information. This 
information, with mileage, is crucial to providing accurate pricing for the RFP and a detailed plan 
for transitioning the fleet to zero-emission school busses by 7/1/2030. 

i. The general route information was published in a local newspaper in August 
2023, this information is located at the end of this addendum.  Note that route 
information is subject to change.  More detailed information may be disclosed 



upon request later in the negotiation process.  Note that several elements of 
this data are subject to Student Data Privacy laws. 

 
11. Please provide a copy of the current contract including the rates charged for the current school 

year. 
i. This information is not relevant to the RFP process; however it is accessible 

through the proper legal protocols. 
 
 

12. Please provide a 3-month sample of invoices that demonstrate how the rates are applied. It 
would be most helpful if those invoices were for months when the system was in normal 
operation (Non COVID). 

i. This information is not relevant to the RFP process; however it is accessible 
through the proper legal protocols. 

 
 

13. Because of the tiers, some buses being used for multiple routes, Appendix C does not give an 
accurate count of buses currently being used. Please provide a list of the current fleet being 
used to provide services including vehicle type and passenger size. This is also crucial 
information needed to provide accurate pricing for the RFP and a detailed plan for transitioning 
the fleet to zero-emission school busses by 7/1/2030. 

i. The statement above is not entirely accurate.  More detailed information may 
be disclosed upon request later in the negotiation process 

 
14. What are the hours and miles billed; total cost for the year for extracurricular trips (Athletic and 

Field Trip)? 
i. EHPS has no information related to mileage, or analysis related to hours/total 

cost for these activities.   
 
 

15. Estimated Summer School transportation needs including number of routes and days operated. 
i. Summer school varies significantly year to year based on programmatic needs 

and available funding sources.  The last (5) years have all had a different slate of 
services and averaging would be accurate. 

 
 

16. Did the School District pay the current contractor during the COVID-19 shutdowns (Spring 
2020/SY 2020-21?) 

i. EHPS paid all agreed upon invoices.  
 
 

17. How are you paying the current contractor now for any partial days or non-operating days? 
i. EHPS currently utilizes the same language reflected in the RFP under “Other 

Considerations” in terms of 180-day coverage. 
 
 



18. What is your intent with payment going forward if a similar situation occurs during the term of 
the future contract? Would you guarantee a certain number of days or a percentage of payment 
to cover fixed costs? 

i. Clear language regarding this subject is reflected in the RFP under “Other 
Considerations”  

 
19. Has the district charged Liquidated Damages to the current vendor? How much annually? 

i. No.  
 
 

20. Is the current contractor short any drivers right now? If so, how many? 
i. EHPS does not have this information 

 
 

21. Will the district accept electronic (email) submission of the proposal? 
i. No, all proposals have to be handed in at 12PM on October 27, 2023 

 
 

22. The RFP does not mention any additional hard copies of the RFP. Does EHPS only want 1 hard 
copy of the proposal?  

i. Only one hard copy is needed. 
 
 

23. Does EHPS currently have any Electric buses in the fleet? If so, how many? What type of bus? 
Passenger count? Route type?  

i. No, EHPS does not have any electric buses in the fleet. 
 
 

24. Has EHPS applied for any grants for Electric buses? If so, what grant(s)? Have you been awarded 
any buses yet?  

i. EHPS submitted a “concept paper” under the Federal Renew America’s Schools 
grant program for electric buses and infrastructure in early 2023, but was not 
selected to move forward in the process. 

 
 

25. Does EHPS qualify for a lower commercial electricity rate as a school district?  
i. Supply rates are currently contracted by the Town of East Hartford for School 

Facilities only.  
 
 

26. Does EHPS pay the electric utility monthly bill directly? If not, who does the bill management?  
i. EHPS currently does not directly pay for any electric usage and contractor-

operated facilities. 
 
 

27. Is EHPS open to a Charging as a Service (CaaS) model to support Electric buses? - CaaS aims to 
reduce the costs associated with establishing and maintaining EV charging infrastructure. By 
bundling hardware, software, installation, maintenance and support services into a single 



monthly fee, charging station owners can avoid significant upfront investments and enjoy 
predictable, manageable expenses.  

i. EHPS cannot answer any questions related to potential Electric Bus transition at 
this time.  Please reference the RFP for submittal requirements related to this 
potential transition. 

 
 

28. What is the normal protocol for “blue sky” emergent early releases, is the provider of 
transportation required to accommodate emergencies or are parents responsible for emergency 
releases to pick up children? What is the typical emergency release frequency that you have 
experienced in the past?  

i. EHPS assesses these types of situations on a case-by -case basis. 
 

29. Can you provide copies and tariff structures of the past 12 months of electricity use for analysis 
of load and additional load impacts? 

i. No, EHPS does not own or operate any facilities related to the bus operation. 
 

30. Can you provide a copy of the current contract? 
i. This information is not relevant to the RFP process, however it is accessible 

through the proper legal protocols. 
 

31. Can you tell me how long the current bus routes are or provide a list of the routes and times? 
i. The general route information was published in a local newspaper in August 

2023, this information is located at the end of this addendum.  Note that route 
information is subject to change.  More detailed information may be disclosed 
upon request later in the negotiation process.  Note that several elements of 
this data are subject to Student Data Privacy laws. 
 

32. Can you provide a few invoices for the current year? 
i. This information is not relevant to the RFP process, however it is accessible 

through the proper legal protocols. 
 

33. Is it possible to get a copy of the union contract and wage scale?  
i. EHPS does not control the labor arrangement/union status of the current 

transportation contract.  
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Run:    Cheney 023 AM   
6:38 AM         CONNECTICUT BLVD & PROSPECT ST & S PROSPECT ST
6:40 AM         CHAPMAN PL & CHAPMAN ST
6:43 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & ELM ST
6:45 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & HILLSIDE ST
6:48 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & LARRABEE ST
6:51 AM         GREAT HILL RD & HIGHVIEW ST
6:54 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & VERNON RD
Run:    Cheney 024 AM   
6:34 AM         BURNHAM ST & SHERWOOD DR
6:41 AM         BURNHAM ST & PHEASANT LN
6:45 AM         PARK AVE & WEBSTER ST
6:47 AM         DEERFIELD AVE & PARK AVE
6:50 AM         GOODWIN ST & SCHOOL ST
6:53 AM         229-233 ELLINGTON ROAD -Gateway Apts
6:56 AM         GOODWIN ST & UNIVERSITY AVE
Run:    Cheney 025 AM   
6:36 AM         SILVER LN & WESTVIEW DR
6:38 AM         FORBES ST & MARGERY DR
6:40 AM         BREWER ST & FORBES ST
6:42 AM         81 Gordon Ln
6:48 AM         BRANDON RD & OCONNELL DR
6:51 AM         HILLS ST & OAK ST
6:54 AM         BURNBROOK RD & OAK ST
6:55 AM         GLADYS RD & OAK ST
Run:    Cheney 026 AM   
6:29 AM         CLEMENT RD & CUMBERLAND DR & SIMMONS RD
6:36 AM         BROWN ST & SMART ST & WHITING RD
6:39 AM         ENSIGN ST & MAIN ST & Pratt & Whitney
6:40 AM         BREWER ST & HAMILTON RD
6:44 AM         BROAD ST & HIGH ST & NAUBUC AVE
6:45 AM         MAPLE ST & WASHINGTON AVE
Run:    CSE 041 AM      
6:45 AM         FARM DR & GOODWIN ST
6:50 AM         North End Senior Center -Remington Rd
6:57 AM         Martin Park -Burnside Ave
7:01 AM         PROSPECT ST & RICHARD RD
Run:    CSE 042 AM      
7:09 AM         GOODWIN PARK -MAPLE ST
7:17 AM         ENSIGN ST & KING CT & WILLOWBROOK RD
Run:    CSE 043 AM      
6:40 AM         COMMUNITY ST & HOME TER
6:49 AM         Foran Park -Forest St
6:55 AM         HILLS ST & WICKHAM DR
7:03 AM         DePietro Park -Silver Ln
Run:    CTRVR-PATH 039  AM      
6:28 AM         761 Burnham St
6:42 AM         Martin Park -Burnside Ave
6:47 AM         COMMUNITY ST & HOME TER
Run:    CTRVR-PATH 040 AM       
6:34 AM         Foran Park -Forest St
6:41 AM         HILLS ST & WICKHAM DR
6:45 AM         Goodwin Park -MAPLE ST
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Run:    CTRVR-PATH 042 AM       
6:30 AM         DePietro Park -Silver Ln
6:40 AM         MERCER AVE & SILVER LN
Run:    CTRVR-PATH 044 AM       
6:25 AM         FARM DR & GOODWIN ST
6:35 AM         66 Remington Rd
6:40 AM         PROSPECT ST & RICHARD RD
Run:    EHHS 001 AM     
6:41 AM         BURNHAM ST & DEPAUW CIR
6:42 AM         601 Burnham St
6:44 AM         BURNHAM ST & SHERWOOD DR
6:48 AM         ANDOVER RD & TEMPLE DR
6:50 AM         COLBY DR & UNIVERSITY AVE
6:50 AM         GOODWIN ST & UNIVERSITY AVE
6:51 AM         ALPS DR & GOODWIN ST
Run:    EHHS 002 AM     
6:30 AM         359 Burnham St
6:37 AM         GARDEN ST & PARK AVE
6:38 AM         OAKLAND AVE & PARK AVE
6:41 AM         GILMAN ST & MAIN ST
6:42 AM         BROOK ST & MAIN ST & N MEADOW RD
6:43 AM         COLLIMORE RD & KING ST
6:43 AM         COLLIMORE RD & HELM RD
Run:    EHHS 003 AM     
6:39 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & CLARK ST
6:40 AM         ELM ST & OLMSTED ST
6:43 AM         CHERRY ST & JAMES ST
Run:    EHHS 004 AM     
6:30 AM         359 Burnham St
6:36 AM         DEERFIELD AVE & PARK AVE
6:37 AM         COLUMBUS ST & PARK AVE
6:37 AM         LAUREL ST & PARK AVE
Run:    EHHS 005 AM     
6:35 AM         359 Burnham St
6:42 AM         GREENLAWN ST & WALNUT ST
6:43 AM         CUMMINGS ST & PRESTON ST
6:44 AM         CHRISTINE DR & EDGEWOOD ST
6:46 AM         PARKVIEW DR & ARNOLD DR -WEST EXIT
Run:    EHHS 006 AM     
6:34 AM         MAIN ST & MOHAWK DR
6:35 AM         MAIN ST & SPRINGSIDE AVE
6:37 AM         HOWARD ST & ORCHARD ST
6:38 AM         RICHARD RD & ROBIN TER
Run:    EHHS 007 AM     
6:40 AM         CHESSLEE RD & ELIDA CT & HENDERSON DR
6:41 AM         AMY DR & HENDERSON DR
6:41 AM         HENDERSON DR & PARK AVE
6:44 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & WIND RD
Run:    EHHS 008 AM     
6:34 AM         MAIN ST & MCKEE ST
6:37 AM         ELLINGTON RD & NORTHBROOK CT
6:37 AM         229-233 ELLINGTON ROAD -Gateway Apts
6:38 AM         SCHOOL ST & WOOD DR
6:39 AM         GOODWIN ST & SCHOOL ST
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Run:    EHHS 009 AM     
6:39 AM         CENTRAL AVE & GARVAN ST & MAIN ST
6:39 AM         GARVAN ST & S PROSPECT ST
6:40 AM         Carroll Rd & Main St
Run:    EHHS 010 AM     
6:46 AM         MOORE AVE & TOLLAND ST
6:48 AM         30-50 Hillside St -Coachlight Village
6:56 AM         CLEMENT RD & SILVER LN
Run:    EHHS 011 AM     
6:43 AM         BIDWELL ST & TOLLAND ST
6:43 AM         SIGNOR ST & TOLLAND ST
6:44 AM         AMBROSE TER & BURNSIDE AVE
Run:    EHHS 012 AM     
6:41 AM         BEACON HILL RD & TOLLAND ST
6:46 AM         INDIAN HILL ST & WOODLAWN CIR
Run:    EHHS 013 AM     
6:45 AM         LIVINGSTON RD & LONG HILL DR
6:47 AM         1263 BURNSIDE AVE -Food Bag
6:47 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & VERNON RD
6:49 AM         Burnside Ave & Bell Ct
Run:    EHHS 014 AM     
6:41 AM         GREEN MANOR DR & RUSTIC LN
6:45 AM         HILLS ST & WICKHAM DR
Run:    EHHS 015 AM     
6:46 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & CHURCH ST & HANMER ST
6:48 AM         ST ROSE CHURCH
Run:    EHHS 016 AM     
6:46 AM         ELMER ST & TOLLAND ST
6:47 AM         BIDWELL AVE & DANIEL ST
6:47 AM         DANIEL ST & ZEBULON ST
Run:    EHHS 017 AM     
6:38 AM         OAK ST & SKYLINE DR
6:43 AM         FOREST ST & OAK ST
6:45 AM         SHANNON RD & SILVER LN
Run:    EHHS 018 AM     
6:43 AM         929 Burnside Ave -October Hills
6:45 AM         CANNON RD & GREAT HILL RD
6:45 AM         CHANDLER ST & GREAT HILL RD
Run:    EHHS 019 AM     
6:36 AM         PARK AVE & WEBSTER ST
6:38 AM         EDWARD ST & STANLEY ST
Run:    EHHS 020 AM     
6:42 AM         BROOKSIDE COMMONS ON CARTER ST
6:45 AM         CLOVERDALE DR & HIGH ST
Run:    EHHS 021 AM     
6:50 AM         MERCER AVE & WHITING RD
6:53 AM         MERCER AVE & SILVER LN
Run:    EHHS 029 AM     
6:45 AM         BROWN ST & PLAIN DR
Run:    EHHS 031 AM     
6:37 AM         HAMILTON RD & MILL RD
6:46 AM         MANOR CIR & OCONNELL DR
Run:    EHHS 035 AM     
6:41 AM         SISSON ST & MERCER Ave
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6:43 AM         MAIN ST & WILLYS ST
6:44 AM         ENSIGN ST & MAIN ST
Run:    EHHS 036 AM     
6:40 AM         BEDFORD AVE & COLONIAL LN & PORTERBROOK AVE
6:42 AM         BROAD ST & MAIN ST
6:43 AM         MAPLE ST & WASHINGTON AVE
Run:    EHHS 037 AM     
6:47 AM         LARAIA AVE & LARRABEE ST
Run:    EHMS 001 AM     
7:48 AM         BURNHAM ST & DEPAUW CIR
7:50 AM         ANDOVER RD & TEMPLE DR
7:53 AM         GOODWIN ST & UNIVERSITY AVE
Run:    EHMS 002 AM     
7:37 AM         ELLINGTON RD & TIFFANY RD
7:38 AM         ELLINGTON RD & NORTHBROOK CT
7:38 AM         229-233 ELLINGTON ROAD -Gateway Apts
7:42 AM         325 King St
7:42 AM         BROOK ST & MAIN ST
7:44 AM         GILMAN ST & MAIN ST
7:46 AM         HELM RD & SEDGWICK RD
Run:    EHMS 003 AM     
7:45 AM         Prospect St & Stanley St
7:46 AM         PARK AVE & WEBSTER ST
Run:    EHMS 004 AM     
7:44 AM         BROWN ST & PLAIN DR
7:44 AM         SISSON ST & SMART ST
Run:    EHMS 006 AM     
7:34 AM         CENTRAL AVE & GARVAN ST & MAIN ST
7:37 AM         GOVERNOR ST & JAMES ST
7:39 AM         Governor St & Walter Pl
7:40 AM         CHAPMAN PL & CHAPMAN ST
Run:    EHMS 007 AM     
7:33 AM         MITCHELL DR & SHADYCREST DR
7:36 AM         OXFORD DR & WASHINGTON AVE
7:38 AM         HOLLISTER DR & NASSAU LN
7:43 AM         HAMILTON RD & MILL RD
Run:    EHMS 008 AM     
7:38 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & CLARK ST
7:39 AM         ELM ST & WELLS AVE
7:40 AM         126-140 Central Ave -Central Court Apts
Run:    EHMS 010 AM     
7:36 AM         MANNING LN & NORIGE DR
7:37 AM         FORBES ST & SANDRA DR
7:39 AM         ROLLING MEADOW DR & SILVER LN
7:41 AM         OAK ST & SHANNON RD
7:42 AM         PRIMROSE DR & SILVER LN
Run:    EHMS 011 AM     
7:35 AM         HILLS ST & WICKHAM DR
7:38 AM         Oak St & Timber Trl
7:40 AM         GREEN MANOR DR & WESTERLY TER
7:42 AM         O'CONNELL DR & WOODSTOCK PL
7:44 AM         FORBES ST & OCONNELL DR
7:45 AM         FORBES ST & HILLS ST
Run:    EHMS 012 AM     
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7:35 AM         441 Main St -The Willows
7:35 AM         ENSIGN ST & MAIN ST
7:37 AM         BROOKSIDE COMMONS ON CARTER ST
7:43 AM         BREWER ST & GRAHAM RD
Run:    EHMS 013 AM     
7:36 AM         FOREST ST & OAK ST
7:37 AM         FOREST ST & GRANDE RD
7:40 AM         BREWER ST & FITZGERALD DR
7:41 AM         BRADLEY ST & BREWER ST
7:42 AM         FORBES ST & FOREST ST
Run:    EHMS 015 AM     
7:45 AM         NUTMEG LN & SIMMONS RD
Run:    EHMS 016 AM     
7:37 AM         126 SILVER LN -Stone Creek Apts
7:37 AM         44 SILVER LN -Apts
7:38 AM         BROWN ST & MAIN ST & WILLYS ST
7:40 AM         LAWRENCE ST & WHITING RD
7:41 AM         MERCER AVE @ Silver Ln School
7:42 AM         SILVER LN & WARREN DR
Run:    EHMS 019 AM     
7:33 AM         CLOVERDALE DR & HIGH ST
7:34 AM         COLONIAL LN & KEENEY COVE DR & NAUBUC AVE
7:35 AM         BEDFORD AVE & BROAD ST
7:37 AM         MAPLE ST & SPAULDING CIR  -West Exit
Run:    EHMS 024 AM     
7:42 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & RACEBROOK RD
7:47 AM         BROOKLINE DR & EDGEWOOD ST
7:48 AM         ARBUTUS ST & CHRISTINE DR
7:49 AM         ARBUTUS ST & CONCORD ST
Run:    Goodwin 012 AM  
8:16 AM         CARRIAGE PARK & HIGH ST
8:17 AM         BROOKSIDE COMMONS ON CARTER ST
Run:    Goodwin 014 AM  
8:15 AM          527 MAIN ST -Apts
8:16 AM         441 Main St -The Willows
8:16 AM         MAIN ST & WILLYS ST
8:17 AM         CROSBY ST & KING CT
8:18 AM         ENSIGN ST & KING CT & WILLOWBROOK RD
Run:    Goodwin 017 AM  
8:15 AM         216 Main St -Apts
8:16 AM         267 Main St -Under Rt 2 Overpass
8:20 AM         HOLMES ST & MILL RD
Run:    Goodwin 032 AM  
8:16 AM         BREWER ST & FOREST ST
8:16 AM         BREWER ST & MADISON ST
8:20 AM         BREWER ST & JEFFERSON LN
8:23 AM         EVANS AVE & HANDEL RD
8:24 AM         HANDEL RD & SUFFOLK DR
Run:    Goodwin 035 AM  
8:18 AM         GLENN RD & LEICHTNER DR
8:19 AM         GLENN RD & GRAHAM RD
8:20 AM         GRAHAM RD & LEICHTNER DR
Run:    Langford 006 AM 
8:15 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & MOORE AVE
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8:17 AM         541 Burnside Ave -Colonial Court Apts
8:19 AM         615 Burnside Ave
8:20 AM         727-731 Burnside Ave -Apts
Run:    Langford 008 AM 
8:23 AM         790 Tolland St
8:25 AM         528 Tolland St
8:26 AM         55 Elmer St
8:27 AM         BIDWELL AVE & DANIEL ST
8:28 AM         DANIEL ST & ZEBULON ST
8:28 AM         449 Burnside Ave
Run:    Langford 022 AM 
8:15 AM         TOLLAND ST & WOODLAND RD
8:16 AM         ANCHOR RD & BEACON HILL RD
8:17 AM         1032 Tolland St
8:20 AM         181 Long Hill St
8:20 AM         195 Long Hill St
8:21 AM         376 Long Hill St
8:21 AM         711 Burnham St
8:23 AM         BURNHAM ST & SHERWOOD DR
8:27 AM         DEPAUW CIR & RENE CT
8:30 AM         363 Long Hill St
Run:    Langford 023 AM 
8:14 AM         30-50 Hillside St -Coachlight Village
8:18 AM         505-509 Burnside Ave -Lamplight Apts
Run:    Langford 033 AM 
8:23 AM         46 Hanmer St
8:23 AM         TOLLAND ST & WILLIAM ST
8:24 AM         BLISS ST & FRANCIS ST
8:25 AM         PINE ST & TOLLAND ST
8:26 AM         EASTVIEW ST & TOLLAND ST
Run:    Langford 037 AM 
8:12 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & KENYON PL
8:13 AM         MYRTLE ST & TURTLE CREEK LN
8:15 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & SIGNOR ST
8:18 AM         66 SCHOOL St
Run:    Mayberry 007 AM 
8:14 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & RACEBROOK RD
8:17 AM         BODWELL RD & BURNSIDE AVE
8:18 AM         Burnside Ave & Bell Ct
8:19 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & HOWARD CT
8:19 AM         816 Burnside Ave
Run:    Mayberry 010 AM 
8:11 AM         ARBUTUS ST & CONCORD ST
8:11 AM         ARBUTUS ST & RONDY LN
8:12 AM         CHRISTINE DR & TORPEY DR
8:13 AM         BROOKLINE DR & EDGEWOOD ST
8:14 AM         ARNOLD DR & BROOKLINE DR
8:15 AM         PARKVIEW DR & ARNOLD DR -WEST EXIT
8:16 AM         293 CHESTER St
8:17 AM         278 Chester St
8:18 AM         201 Chester St
8:19 AM         135 Chester St
Run:    Mayberry 020 AM 
8:16 AM         FORBES ST & MORRIS CT
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8:17 AM         CHURCH ST & GOODWIN PL
8:19 AM         855 Burnside Ave
8:21 AM         CUMMINGS ST & PRESTON ST
8:21 AM         GREENLAWN ST & WALNUT ST
8:21 AM         CONCORD ST & WALNUT ST
Run:    Mayberry 026 AM 
8:18 AM         50 Scotland Road -Oakwood Apts
8:19 AM         905 Burnside Ave -Silverbrick Place
8:20 AM         HILLCREST RD & LONG HILL DR & TERRACE AVE
8:22 AM         BLISS ST & PINE ST
8:24 AM         LARRABEE ST & PINE ST
8:24 AM         CASABELLA CIR & LARRABEE ST
Run:    Norris 003 AM   
8:26 AM         ELLINGTON RD & NORTHBROOK CT
8:28 AM         BROOK ST & MAIN ST
8:29 AM         1911 Main St
8:29 AM         1905/6 Main St
8:30 AM         GILMAN ST & KING ST
8:30 AM         COLLIMORE RD & KING ST
Run:    Norris 027 AM   
8:20 AM         MICHAEL AVE & PARK AVE
8:20 AM         DEERFIELD AVE & PARK AVE
8:21 AM         GARDEN ST & PARK AVE
Run:    Norris 030 AM   
8:20 AM         COLUMBUS ST & PARK AVE
8:23 AM         LAUREL ST & PARK AVE
Run:    O'Brien 001 AM  
8:09 AM         JUNE ST & PITKIN ST
8:15 AM         CHERRY ST & JENCKS ST
8:21 AM         BISSELL ST & ELM ST
8:23 AM         ELM ST & OLMSTED ST
Run:    O'Brien 002 AM  
8:10 AM         CONNECTICUT BLVD & LYNN ST
8:11 AM         CHAPEL ST & WARD ST
8:13 AM         CARROLL CT & CARROLL RD
8:15 AM         GARVAN ST & S PROSPECT ST
8:16 AM         GOVERNOR ST & PROSPECT ST
Run:    O'Brien 005 AM  
8:13 AM         PROSPECT ST & RICHARD RD
8:20 AM         487 Park Ave
Run:    O'Brien 015 AM  
8:16 AM         ANDREW DR & CHESSLEE RD
8:16 AM         ELIDA CT & TIMOTHY RD
8:21 AM         256 Ellington Rd
8:21 AM         COLLIMORE RD & HELM RD
8:23 AM         BURNHAM ST & PHEASANT LN
8:27 AM         229-233 ELLINGTON ROAD -Gateway Apts
8:35 AM         O'Brien
8:45 AM         359 Burnham St
Run:    O'Brien 016 AM  
8:14 AM         490 Tolland St
8:16 AM         262 Tolland St
8:18 AM         SIGNOR ST & TOLLAND ST
8:19 AM         Bidwell Ave & Tolland St
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8:20 AM         ELMER ST & TOLLAND ST
Run:    O'Brien 028 AM  
8:15 AM         126-140 Central Ave -Central Court Apts
8:16 AM         74 CENTRAL Ave
8:17 AM         CENTRAL Ave -Raymond Library
8:19 AM         BIGELOW ST & BURNSIDE AVE
8:20 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & DRIGGS CT
Run:    O'Brien 034 AM  
8:20 AM         50 TOLLAND St
8:21 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & CLARK ST
8:22 AM         BRAGG ST & OLMSTED ST
8:23 AM         AMBROSE TER & BURNSIDE AVE
8:24 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & SIGNOR ST
Run:    O'Brien 036 AM  
8:23 AM         HENDERSON DR & PARK AVE
8:24 AM         380 Park Ave -Apts
8:28 AM         AMY DR & TIMOTHY RD
Run:    O'Connell 014 AM        
7:36 AM         BANTLE RD & FORBES ST & RIVAL CT
7:38 AM         BRADLEY ST & FORBES ST
7:39 AM         FORBES ST & SALEM RD
7:41 AM         BREWER ST & ROXBURY RD
7:44 AM         CRESCENT DR & SHADYCREST DR
7:47 AM         HOLLY RD & MAPLE ST
7:49 AM         MAPLE ST & SPAULDING CIR -West Exit
7:53 AM         FORBES ST & HERITAGE LN
7:55 AM         FORBES ST & LINWOOD DR
Run:    O'Connell 017 AM        
7:34 AM         177 Naubuc Ave
7:35 AM         210 Naubuc Ave
7:36 AM         COLONIAL LN & NAUBUC AVE
7:38 AM         KENCOVE DR & NAUBUC AVE
7:43 AM         72 Main St
7:45 AM         PARK LN & PORTER ST
7:49 AM         BEDFORD AVE & COLONIAL LN & PORTERBROOK AVE
7:50 AM         BEDFORD AVE & HOCKANUM DR
Run:    O'Connell 020 AM        
7:24 AM         BURNSIDE AVE & DELMONT RD
7:29 AM         CHRISTINE DR & TORPEY DR
7:33 AM         GREENLAWN ST & WALNUT ST
7:36 AM         HARMONY ST & WOODLAWN CIR
7:38 AM         EASTON ST & GREAT HILL RD
7:40 AM         CHESTER ST & GREAT HILL RD
Run:    O'Connell 022 AM        
7:28 AM         GOODWIN ST & UNIVERSITY AVE
7:29 AM         GOODWIN ST & KIMBERLY LN
7:32 AM         ELMER ST & TOLLAND ST
7:35 AM         LARAIA AVE & LARRABEE ST
7:38 AM         CHURCH ST & GOODWIN PL
Run:    O'Connell 025 AM        
7:43 AM         BRENTMOOR RD & SILVER LN
7:46 AM         OAK ST & SHANNON RD
7:47 AM         CAVAN RD & OAK ST
7:48 AM         MELTON DR & OAK ST
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7:49 AM         KINGSTON DR & OAK ST
7:53 AM         CRESTWOOD TRL & HILLS ST
7:55 AM         FARMSTEAD RD & FOWLER LN
Run:    O'Connell 026 AM        
7:34 AM         FOREST ST & TIMROD TRL
7:38 AM         FITZGERALD DR & MELODY LN
7:41 AM         BRADLEY ST & BREWER ST
7:46 AM         GREENWOOD ST & HILLS ST
7:50 AM         ALEXANDER DR & HILLS ST
7:51 AM         HERBERT DR & WICKHAM DR
Run:    O'Connell 030 AM        
7:34 AM         CHESSLEE RD & SCHOOL ST
7:36 AM         DEERFIELD AVE & PARK AVE
7:38 AM         CLAREMONT ST & PARK AVE
7:40 AM         PROSPECT ST & VINE ST
Run:    O'Connell 031 AM        
7:38 AM         GLENN RD & LEICHTNER DR
7:43 AM         HOLLISTER DR & JEFFERSON LN
7:45 AM         CAMBRIDGE DR & NASSAU LN
7:48 AM         OXFORD DR & PRINCETON LN
7:50 AM         OXFORD DR & WASHINGTON AVE
7:53 AM         HANDEL RD & MAPLE ST
Run:    O'Connell 032 AM        
7:34 AM         Main St & Scott St
7:38 AM         HOLMES ST & MILL RD
7:41 AM         HIGH CT & HIGH ST
7:44 AM         COLONIAL PARK RD & HIGH ST
7:46 AM         HIGH ST & RIVERMEAD BLVD
7:47 AM         HIGH ST & NAUBUC AVE
7:49 AM         MAIN ST & NAUBUC AVE
Run:    O'Connell 033 AM        
7:25 AM         RICHARD RD & ROBIN TER
7:28 AM         BREWER LN & CENTRAL AVE
7:30 AM         GARVAN ST & S PROSPECT ST
7:35 AM         BROWN ST & PLAIN DR
7:43 AM         FORBES ST & SANDRA DR
7:46 AM         MANNING LN & NORIGE DR
Run:    O'Connell 034 AM        
7:15 AM         GOODWIN ST & TIFFANY RD
7:17 AM         229-233 ELLINGTON ROAD -Gateway Apts
7:20 AM         337 King St
7:22 AM         BROOK ST & MAIN ST & N MEADOW RD
7:23 AM         1909 Main St
7:26 AM         MAIN ST & MOHAWK DR
7:32 AM         BEAUMONT ST & BURNSIDE AVE
7:38 AM         CLEMENT RD & CUMBERLAND DR & SIMMONS RD
7:40 AM         CLEMENT RD & GOLD ST
Run:    O'Connell 036 AM        
7:39 AM         876 Oak St
7:40 AM         OAK ST & PALMER DR
7:41 AM         LARK DR & OAK ST
7:43 AM         GAIL RD & OAK ST
7:44 AM         GLADYS RD & OAK ST
7:45 AM         PRIMROSE DR & SHADY LN
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Run:    Pitkin 009 AM   
8:15 AM         62 Clement Road -Stop Sign
8:16 AM         CLEMENT RD & GOLD ST
8:18 AM         NUTMEG LN & SIMMONS RD
Run:    Pitkin 011 AM   
8:15 AM         NUTMEG LN & APPLEGATE LN
8:18 AM         APPLEGATE LN & SILVER LN
8:19 AM         GOULD DR & SIMMONS RD
8:24 AM         583 Silver Ln
8:26 AM         964 Silver Lane
Run:    Pitkin 013 AM   
8:13 AM         FORBES ST & MANNING LN
8:14 AM         FORBES ST & EHHS Rear Entrance
8:15 AM         FORBES ST & GODAR TER
8:19 AM         DOROTHY RD & FOREST ST
8:20 AM         ANITA DR & TIMROD TRL
8:23 AM         DEEPWOOD DR & GRANDE RD
Run:    Pitkin 019 AM   
8:15 AM         CIPOLLA DR & SILVER LN
8:16 AM         SILVER LN & WESTVIEW DR
8:18 AM         SAWKA DR & SUMMERSET DR
8:20 AM         RIDGEWOOD RD & SUNSET RIDGE DR
8:21 AM         COPPER BEECH WAY & SILVER LN
8:25 AM         FARNHAM DR & MULCAHY DR
Run:    Pitkin 021 AM   
8:13 AM         303 Forbes St
8:14 AM         383 Forbes St
8:14 AM         BRENTMOOR RD & BRENTMOOR RD
8:18 AM         HOLLAND DR & MILWOOD RD
8:19 AM         BIRCHWOOD RD & SILVER LN
8:20 AM         BALSAM RD & FORBES ST
8:22 AM         MARGERY DR & NAOMI DR -North Exit
8:23 AM         MARGERY DR & NAOMI DR -South Exit
Run:    Pitkin 025 AM   
8:21 AM         HARTZ LN & HILLTOP FARMS LN & ROLLING MEADOW DR
8:23 AM  DEBORAH DR & SANDRA DR
8:24 AM  FORBES ST & SANDRA DR
8:25 AM  PENNEY DR & WILDFLOWER RD
Run: Prince 027 AM 
6:19 AM  CLEMENT RD & CUMBERLAND DR & SIMMONS RD
6:23 AM  FORBES ST & MARGERY DR
6:29 AM  FOREST ST & OAK ST
6:35 AM  OCONNELL DR & WESTERLY TER
6:41 AM  MAPLE ST & WASHINGTON AVE
6:42 AM  CLOVERDALE DR & HIGH ST
6:48 AM  MERCER AVE @ Silver Ln School
Run: Prince 028 AM 
6:29 AM  GOODWIN ST & SCHOOL ST
6:35 AM  EASTON ST & GREAT HILL RD
6:39 AM  BURNSIDE AVE & LARRABEE ST
6:42 AM  COLUMBUS ST & PARK AVE
6:44 AM  PARK AVE & WEBSTER ST
6:47 AM  AMBROSE TER & BURNSIDE AVE
6:49 AM  RICHARD RD & ROBIN TER
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Run: Riverside 040 AM 
8:05 AM  BURKE ST & OCONNELL DR
8:09 AM  HILLS ST & WICKHAM DR
8:11 AM  GREENBRIER RD & HILLS ST
8:15 AM  BREWER ST & GLENN RD
8:19 AM  CRESCENT DR & CROSS DR
8:23 AM  BEDFORD AVE & BROAD ST
Run: Riverside 041 AM 
8:00 AM  BURNSIDE AVE & WIND RD
8:02 AM  LARAIA AVE & LARRABEE ST
8:07 AM  COMMUNITY ST & HOME TER
8:13 AM  GOODWIN ST & UNIVERSITY AVE
8:17 AM  ELLINGTON RD & SEDGWICK RD
8:19 AM  MAIN ST & MOHAWK DR
Run: Riverside 043 AM 
8:06 AM  PROSPECT ST & RICHARD RD
8:08 AM  PROSPECT ST & VINE ST
8:12 AM  LAUREL ST & PARK AVE
8:16 AM  ELM ST & OLMSTED ST
8:17 AM  BURNSIDE AVE & CLUNE CT
Run: Riverside 044 AM 
8:00 AM  DEBORAH DR & FORBES ST & NORIGE DR
8:06 AM  FOREST ST & GRANDE RD
8:08 AM  GLADYS RD & OAK ST
8:10 AM  SILVER LN & WESTVIEW DR
8:13 AM  CLEMENT RD & CUMBERLAND DR & SIMMONS RD
8:21 AM  Elizabeth Shea Park -Mercer Ave
Run: Sunset 005 AM 
7:38 AM  GOODWIN ST & SCHOOL ST
7:42 AM  BLACKSTONE LN & LONG HILL ST
7:43 AM  LONG HILL DR & TOLLAND ST
7:47 AM  Bidwell Ave & Burnside Ave
Run: Sunset 009 AM 
7:33 AM  GREENBRIER RD & HILLS ST
7:36 AM  FORBES ST & HILLS ST
7:38 AM  HANDEL RD & MAPLE ST
7:41 AM  CAMBRIDGE DR & NASSAU LN
7:43 AM  BREWER ST & GRAHAM RD
Run: Sunset 018 AM 
7:26 AM  ELLINGTON RD & TIFFANY RD
7:27 AM  ELLINGTON RD & NORTHBROOK CT
7:28 AM  229-233 ELLINGTON ROAD -Gateway Apts
7:30 AM  BROOK ST & KING ST
7:33 AM  GREENE TER & MAIN ST
7:36 AM  RICHARD RD & ROBIN TER
7:37 AM  GARVAN ST & MAIN ST
Run: Sunset 021 AM 
7:36 AM  HILLS ST & OAK ST
7:39 AM  GREEN MANOR DR & WESTERLY TER
7:41 AM  BURKE ST & OCONNELL DR
7:42 AM  BRITT RD & OCONNELL DR
Run: Sunset 023 AM 
7:40 AM  COPPER BEECH WAY & SILVER LN
7:44 AM  GLADYS RD & OAK ST
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7:46 AM  FOREST ST & MELTON DR
7:49 AM  BREWER ST & FITZGERALD DR
7:50 AM  BREWER ST & TAYLOR ST
7:51 AM  BREWER ST & ROXBURY RD
7:52 AM  MITCHELL DR & SHADYCREST DR
Run: Sunset 029 AM 
7:30 AM  HENDERSON DR & PARK AVE
7:32 AM  COLUMBUS ST & PARK AVE
7:35 AM  PARK AVE & WEBSTER ST
7:43 AM  Burnside Ave & Latimer St
7:43 AM  SIGNOR ST & TOLLAND ST
7:45 AM  BURNSIDE AVE & TOLLAND ST
7:47 AM  ELM ST & OLMSTED ST
7:48 AM  BREWER LN & CENTRAL AVE
Run: Sunset 035 AM 
7:25 AM  Elizabeth Shea Park -Mercer Ave
7:26 AM  44 SILVER LN -Apts
7:27 AM  MAIN ST & WILLYS ST
7:29 AM  ENSIGN ST & MAIN ST
7:31 AM  Brewer St & Mill Rd
7:32 AM  HIGH ST & WADSWORTH ST
7:34 AM  BROAD ST & HIGH ST & NAUBUC AVE
Run: Sunset 037 AM 
7:37 AM  929 Burnside Ave -October Hills
7:40 AM  WALNUT ST & WOODLAWN CIR
7:42 AM  CHRISTINE DR & EDGEWOOD ST
7:43 AM  Burnside Ave & Bell Ct
7:46 AM  BURNSIDE AVE & LARRABEE ST
Run: Synergy 030 AM 
6:39 AM  GOODWIN ST & SCHOOL ST
6:42 AM  LAUREL ST & PARK AVE
6:44 AM   & MAIN ST & PARK AVE
6:46 AM  GOVERNOR ST & ROBIN TER
6:49 AM  BURNSIDE AVE & TOLLAND ST
6:54 AM  WALNUT ST & WOODLAWN CIR
6:55 AM  CANNON RD & GREAT HILL RD
Run: Synergy 032 AM 
6:32 AM  BURNSIDE AVE & HILLSIDE ST
6:41 AM  CLEMENT RD & SILVER LN
6:43 AM  BROWN ST & SMART ST & WHITING RD
6:46 AM  ENSIGN ST & MAIN ST
6:47 AM  BREWER ST & HAMILTON RD
6:49 AM  HIGH ST & WADSWORTH ST
6:51 AM  BEDFORD AVE & BROAD ST
6:54 AM  FORBES ST & MAPLE ST
7:01 AM  FOREST ST & OAK ST
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